
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Thursday 8 July 2021 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Friday 16 July 2021, 1.30 pm 
 

Wigton Market Hall 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Michael Heaslip (Co-Chair)  Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes (Co-

Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Markus Campbell-Savours 
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Patrick Gorrill 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Iain Greaney 
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Paul Scott  
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2021. 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  
 
 
 



4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm on a working day, allowing two clear 
working days before the day of the meeting. 

  

5. Public Participation   
 

 To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting. 

  

6. Further update on the outside body reports from the member 
representatives   

 

7. The Local Focus Hub  (Pages 9 - 12) 
 

 To explore the internal management of the Council’s processes in dealing with 
any issues raised which are passed to the Hub, including how information if 
provided back to the originator. 

  

8. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report  (Pages 13 - 18) 
 

 To review and agree the draft summary 
  

9. Third report of the Response to the Pandemic Task and Finish Group  
(Pages 19 - 22) 

 

 To agree the report from the Task and Finish Group 
  

10. Centre for Governance and Scrutiny guidance on the relationship between 
Scrutiny and Audit  (Pages 23 - 52) 

 

 To identify any actions required as a result of this newly published guidance. 
  

11. Forward Plan  (Pages 53 - 60) 
 

12. Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring   
 

13. Task and Finish Groups   
 

 To agree terms of reference and scope of the initial group. 
  

 

The Chairman will move:-   
 

“That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it 
may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.” 
 

14. Keswick Spa Closure   
 

15. Strategic Delivery Partner   
 



 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 3 September 2021, 1.30 pm TBC 

Council Chamber, Allerdale House 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Wigton Market Hall, 
Church Street, CA7 9AA on Friday 18 June 2021 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Michael Heaslip (Chair) Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes (Co-

Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Markus Campbell-Savours 
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Patrick Gorrill 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Iain Greaney 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Hilary Harrington, Councillor 
Daniel Horsley, Councillor Paul Scott and Councillor Stephen Stoddart 
 
Staff Present 
 
A FitzGerald, N Hardy, I Hinde, L Jardine and L Tomlinson 
 
 
59. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 April 2021 were signed as a correct 
record. 
 

60. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

61. Questions  
 
None received 
 

62. Public Participation  
 
None received 
 

63. Quarter 4 Performance Report 2020/21  
 
The Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) introduced the 
Quarter 4 performance report for 2020/21 and provided an overview of the 
report including key projects and activities, corporate KPIs and strategic risks 
which are based on the interim delivery plan.  
 
Members were informed that the report covers performance for Quarter 4, but 
also for all of 2020/21. 
 
Concerns were raised over the Disabled Facilities Grant, members were 
advised that the Council still interacts with Occupational Therapy but due to the 
pandemic, assessments and referrals have reduced. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Members then asked questions in relation to local suppliers and contractors. 
Due to the pandemic, certain items had to be sourced wherever possible, 
however the Council is working hard to increase the numbers of local suppliers. 
 
Questions were also raised from members in relation to Building Control, and 
how the Council will manage changes with legislation. An update will be 
provided to members on the changes to Building Control and on the future of 
Reedlands Road. 
 
Members noted the contents of the report. 
 

64. Report from Outside Body Representatives  
 
The Chair introduced the item explaining that the Committee had agreed to ask 
questions of the member representatives appointed to Outside Bodies and 
other Scrutiny functions. 
 
The Chair then went through each of the responses received from members of 
the bodies, providing the name of each member representative and explained 
that those who did not respond will be sent follow up reminders. 
 
The Committee were appreciative of the responses which had been received to 
date, and no lines of enquiry had emerged from the reports. 
 
Members then debated the accountability of members and whether they should 
be reporting back to Committee. The Chair explained that the Committee can 
report back to Executive and Council and ask for members to be removed. 
 
Debate then moved on to whether the Council should be challenging outside 
bodies in instances where meetings have not been held. The Chair advised that 
feedback should be provided to the members of the bodies and highlighted the 
challenges caused by the pandemic. 
 
Members noted the contents of the report. 
 

65. Forward Plan  
 
The forward plan had been revised since the last meeting; members were 
provided with the latest forward plan via email and were asked to send any 
comments to the chair. 
 
An update will also be provided to members in relation to ‘Allerdale Investment 
Partnership - Consideration of Future Sites’ 
 
Members noted the contents of the forward plan. 
 

66. Work Programme 2021/22  
 
The Chair explained that following feedback from members, suggested items for 
the work programmes cover three main themes and the Chair proposed that 
Task and Finish Groups are created for the following; 
 

Page 6



 Community Leadership 

 Young People and Corporate Parenting. 

 Culture, Arts and Leisure Provision 
 
It was noted that the TFG themes identified needed to be scoped and terms of 
reference drawn up. 
 
In addition, the Chair explained that from 2020/21, the review of strategy 
documents will be coming to committee, along with Local Government 
Reorganisation (LGR), Housing Strategy, the Workington/Maryport 
Programmes, the role of the Council as Charity Trustee and the standard items 
such as budget, task and finish groups, outside bodies and performance 
reports. 
 
Members considered the proposals and discussed the potential impact LGR will 
have on the work of the committee. Members acknowledging that the work of 
the committee may require a different approach with a likely scenario being that 
the Council will be replaced by one of the options submitted to Government.  
 
Members asked questions in relation to new ward/divisions and what LGR could 
mean to the major programmes/projects the Council is currently working on. 
Members will be provided with an update from officers but it is likely that the 
Maryport and Workington Town projects will continue as these are government 
funded programmes. 
 
Extensive debate ensued and concerns were raised on the work of the Local 
Focus Hub. Members would like more information on the Hub and will seek 
feedback on the Hub from the wider Council membership. Members also 
expressed frustration at the Police 101 reporting service. 
 
Members agreed that the Local Focus Hub and its work are added onto the 
agenda for the next Committee Meeting. 
 
Members then discussed meeting times as some members would prefer later 
start times. Officers in conjunction with the Chair will look into the possibility of 
amending the date and time of the September 2021 meeting. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.05 pm 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 16 July 2021 

 

Governance of referrals to the Local Focus Hub 

 

Report from    Ian Hinde, Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) 

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0 The reason for the decision 

 
1.1 At its June meeting the Committee agreed to consider the Council’s governance of 

its relationship with the Local Focus Hub and the process adopted to make referrals 

to the Hub. This report is to provide some background to this agenda item and any 

resulting decision. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

 

2.1 That the Committee considers governance of the Council’s relationship with the 

Local Focus Hub. 

 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 

3.1 Local Focus Hubs are an approved delivery agency on behalf of Safer Cumbria and 

contribute directly to the achievement of the Safer Cumbria objectives. 

 

3.2 The Local Focus Hubs act as the Tactical Delivery Groups for the West Cumbria 

Community Safety Partnership (CSP). The Hub takes direction and actions set by 

the Strategic Group of the Community Safety Partnership whilst also advising the 

Strategic Group on community priorities and links.  

 

4.0  Content  

 
4.1 There are two Local Focus Hubs (LFH) within West Cumbria. These are based 

within and serve the boundaries of the two Local Authority areas: Allerdale Borough 

and Copeland Borough.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

4.2 The aims and objectives of the Hubs are: 

 Promote partnership working to prevent Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Disorder 

 Engage with local communities to proactively identify problem areas 

 Tackle issues having a detrimental effect on the quality of life of the local 
community.  

 

The Local Focus Hubs are made up of partners from these agencies: 

 Cumbria Constabulary 

 the District Councils 

 Cumbria County Council 

 Cumbria Fire & Rescue 

 Probation services 

 Local registered providers of Social Housing 

 Third sector agencies 

 Other partners as necessary for each Local Focus Hub geographic area. 
 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 The Local Focus Hubs will arrange multi-agency meetings/responses with relevant 

partners in response to issues referred into the Hub. The referring agency will 

remain as the lead agency (in exceptional circumstances a different agency may be 

allocated as the lead agency, this will be upon agreement by all partners involved) 

and will attend any relevant meetings in order to assist the Local Focus Hub in co-

ordinating the response.  

 

Attendance at referral meetings should reflect the practitioner level as determined 

by each agency in order to form the best multi-agency response to that particular 

referral.   

 

5.2 Referrals will only be made by a partner agency where that agency has exhausted 

all options to tackle the problem and therefore deems a multi-agency response is 

required.  

 

5.3 The LFH hubs will co-ordinate and record the response to any referrals / issues and 

will keep a record of the actions allocated to each agency. Timescales for 

completion will be agreed by all partners involved within that response and each 

agency agrees to ensure actions are carried out and updates provided in a timely 

Page 10



manner. The LFH will collate the responses and assess what further co-ordination is 

required.  

 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee role is central to contributing improvements 
assisting the delivery of the Council Strategy. 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 None directly from this report. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

 None directly from this report. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 Not applicable. 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee recognises the important contribution it 
makes to the Council’s overall satisfaction. 

6.6 Equality impacts 

 None directly from this report. 

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

 None directly from this report. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

 None directly from this report. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

 None directly from this report. 

6.10 Other significant implications 

 None from this report. 
 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Contact officer name – Ian Hinde 
Job title – Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) 
Email address – ian.hinde@allerdale.gov.uk 
Tel no. – 01900 516664 
  

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



 

 

  

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

Annual Summary 2020 - 21 
 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit” 

 Page 13

Agenda Item 8



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2020-2021 

 

Foreword 

Chair’s input needed here 

 

Councillor Michael Heaslip    

Co-Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 

 

Page 14



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2020-2021 

 

Committee membership 2020-2021 

The Committee consists of twelve members. During 2019-2020 the members were: 

Councillor Antony Annison 

Councillor Carmel Bell  

Councillor John Crouch 

Councillor Allan Daniels 

Councillor Malcolm Grainger 

Councillor  Iain Greaney 

Councillor Michael Heaslip 

Councillor Joe Holliday 

Councillor Daniel Horsley 

Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 

Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 

Councillor Paul Scott 

 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee met ten times during 2020/21. The 

Committee considered a wide variety of subjects over the course of those meetings 

as indicated below. 

 
At the meeting on 19 June 2020, the new Committee members were introduced, 

received a presentation on the Council Strategy and considered the work 

programme for the year.  

 

At the meeting on 17 July, the Committee considered its annual review of the 

Community Safety Partnership  and the responses to the pandemic.  

 

At the meeting on 28 August, the Committee focused on the current Maryport 

programmes, and the legal test for a Public Spaces Protection Order relating to dog 

fouling.   

 
At the meeting on 16 October, the Committee considered the Resilient Communities 

and Economic Growth strategies.  

 

At the meeting on 6 November, the Committee held a special meeting focusing on 

the local government reorganisation proposals for Cumbria. 

 

At the meeting on 27 November, the Committee considered the draft Waste and 

Recycling Policy. 

 

At the meeting on 15 January 2021, the Committee considered the progress of the 

Climate Change Group and further considered the Resilient Communities strategy.  

Page 15



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2020-2021 

 

 

At the meeting on 26 February, the Committee received a presentation on the project 

management system and further considered the Economic Recovery and Growth 

Strategy.  

 

At the meeting on 26 March, the Committee considered the progress of the 

programmes in Workington and Maryport.  

 

At the meeting on 23 April, the Committee heard updates from some of the Council’s  

representatives to outside bodies and considered the final drafts of the two strategies 

being developed.   

 

Task and Finish Group activity 

 

The Committee had agreed in previous years that each task and finish group will 

include at least one person from the Committee as a member and the chair of the 

group, however the aim is always to involve the wider membership with all members 

encouraged to take part in task and finish groups according to their interests and/or 

knowledge.   

 

The groups which met during the year are summarised below: 

 

Procurement Task and Finish Group 

 

The group focused on the procurement process followed in the selection of 

contractors for waste collection and recycling, street cleaning and grass cutting. The 

group heard from officers involved throughout the process. The group concluded by 

producing a report with 17 recommendations which was presented to and accepted 

by Executive. The report was also commended by the Council’s external auditor who 

recommended it should be overseen for implementation by the Council’s Audit 

Committee. 

 

The group consisted of Councillor Carmel Bell (chair), Councillor Malcolm Grainger 

(vice chair), Councillor Iain Greaney, and Councillor Sally Lansbury. 

 

Response to the Pandemic Task and Finish Group 

 

This group was established to consider aspects of the Council’s response to the 

pandemic and ran separate sets of sessions to explore three topics: the practical 

response of dealing with the pandemic in the first weeks, the effect of the pandemic 

on young people and communities and the proposals for council staffing and delivery 

of services beyond the pandemic. A short report with recommendations has been 

produced for each iteration. 

Page 16



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2020-2021 

 

 

The group consisted of Councillor Michael Heaslip (chair), Councillor Peter Kendall, 

Councillor Elaine Lynch, Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes and Councillor Paul 

Scott. 

 

Budget Task and Finish Group 

 
The group considered summaries of bids for recurring growth, non-recurring growth, 

recurring savings, non-recurring savings, and other financial proposals and changes, 

all of which had been considered at a series of budget review meetings.  

 

While the group had questions about particular aspects of the figures, the primary 

concern focused on was whether the proposed budget would help to deliver the 

Council Strategy. 

 
The group consisted of Councillor Michael Heaslip (chair), Councillor Elaine Lynch,  

Councillor Alan Smith and Councillor Will Wilkinson. 

 

Working in conjunction with Audit and Risk Committee 

 

The Co-Chairs met with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Audit Committee during the 

year to explore the relationship of the two committees in terms of their respective 

remits, potential areas of collaboration and clarifying aspects of possible confusion in 

trying to determine the similarities and differences of the two committees. 

 

Future work programme 

 

The work programme is reviewed by the Committee at each business meeting to 

ensure that it remains up to date and any changing circumstances or additional 

emerging topics are considered.   

 

More information on the scrutiny function, including agendas, minutes, ongoing 

review work, and Councillor details can be found on the Council’s website at 

www.allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 17

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



1 
 

  

Third Report of the 

Response to the Pandemic 

Task and Finish Group  
 

June 2021 

 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit” 

 Page 19

Agenda Item 9



2 
 

THIRD REPORT OF RESPONSE TO THE PANDEMIC TASK AND FINISH GROUP  
 

1. Introduction  

The group was created to explore aspects of the response to the pandemic for this Council. 

For this element of the work, the group members were: 

 

 Councillor Michael Heaslip (chair) 

 Councillor Peter Kendall 

 Councillor Elaine Lynch 

 Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 

 Councillor Paul Scott 

 

Over two meetings the group had presentations from and discussions with Paul Wood, Head 

of Transformation and Andrew Seekings, Chief Executive. 

 

2. Background 
 

Having considered aspects of the effects of the pandemic on the community, the group 

decided to focus the third set of sessions on any resulting effects on the delivery of services 

and the staff team delivering those services. 
 

3. Transformation of service provision 

The proposed future operating model was being based on research and surveys of staff 

attitudes as well as taking account of changes in the external world. 

 

The intended model is to provide options for services to be accessed online, using a 

principle of being able to speak to someone when needed and using technology when not, 

for example paying a bill. Contact with officers would be available as necessary though the 

preferred form of contact for many interactions would be through other methods, mainly 

online. 

 

The proposed future working model for staff is a hybrid of working from home and time in 

the office, though as a result of the pandemic most staff have been working from home. 

Some emergency response services have had staff working from the offices. 

 

The group members recommend that care be taken to ensure that this would not lead to a 

scattered provision and staff would gain some grounding in how the organisation works, 

especially newer staff. 

 

Members also recommend  that councillors are assisted to understand these changes and 

new staff arrangements or responsibilities to help them with any queries. 

Page 20



3 
 

 

Members further recommend that due consideration be given to the legitimate 

expectations of citizens to have access to the Council and its services in ways appropriate to 

their circumstances, so far as possible, and that any transformation of service provision 

should consider “purpose” as the starting point, with “purpose” defined by outcomes for 

citizens, measured in their terms. 

 

Members recalled that humans are social animals and value face to face contact in public 

offices and elsewhere, and the pandemic has cut many off from social contact: a pandemic 

response which reinforces isolation rather than promoting human contact is unlikely to 

meet the expectations of all citizens. 

 

4. Innovation in responsiveness and developing solutions 

The second meeting focused on discussion with the Chief Executive to understand the 

proposals for changes to the operating model and consequently to the staffing structure to 

deliver these proposals.  

 

A key feature of the new model is dealing with as much work as possible at the frontline, 

enabling front line staff to resolve issues at first contact wherever possible without 

necessarily referring to a “back office”. It is recognised that this may involve significant 

changes in skills and knowledge for staff at the “front office”, with consequences for their 

training and development. It is also recognised that not everyone will want to or be able to 

work in this way, and that staff have different strengths and are best used in ways which 

enable them to develop those strengths. 

 

Capital programmes are at the heart of the Whitehall approach to pandemic recovery, and 

the new model will need to recognise this and deploy people with the appropriate 

strengths, skills and knowledge to work in that context. 

 

Members recalled that the original purpose for which District Councils were called into 

being was Public Health, and most District Council functions have their origins in measures 

to protect and improve health. The pandemic has been a salutary reminder to us (if not yet 

to Whitehall) of the centrality of local public health to the well-being of the country, and any 

pandemic recovery measures need to include innovation in how we better approach 

securing the health and well-being of our citizens.  

 

5. Recommendations 
 

The Task and Finish Group makes the following recommendations:  

 

1. The Council should collect appropriate data and/or conduct research to ensure 

service levels from the perspective of the citizen are the same or better since the 

implementation of any changes. 

Page 21



4 
 

2.  The Council must ensure the staff team is supported to understand, implement and 

deliver through any changes to service delivery models and practices 

3. Councillors must be supported to effectively support residents as a result of any 

service or staffing changes 

 

Also, the Task and Finish Group reiterates these prior recommendations:  

 

4. The Council should embed the principles and approaches outlined in this report  in 

its Resilient Communities Strategy and approach, incorporating a model of 

community development which focuses on working with people and communities 

and includes councillors as collective community leaders in their areas.   

5. The Council should be at the forefront of new approaches by creating opportunities  

a – for staff to develop their skills in relational work with communities, 

b – for communities to be supported … including undertaking research then 

developing projects based on the results.  

 

Page 22



1 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Audit committees and scrutiny committees: 
working together

JUNE 2021 Page 23

Agenda Item 10



2 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

This paper has been produced with financial support from the LGA, as part of CfGS’s contracted 
delivery of local government improvement services funded by the UK government. 

Our thanks to colleagues at CIPFA, the NAO and the local councils and councillors who assisted us in 
the preparation of this document. Any errors are those of the author. 

Report author: Ed Hammond 
June 2021

  
©2021 Centre for Governance and Scrutiny  
Permission granted to reproduce for personal and educational use only.  
Commercial copying, hiring, lending is prohibited.

Page 24



3C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Contents

4 / Introduction

6 / Executive summary

9 / Ways to collaborate 
   Clarifying the core roles of both functions 

   Regular conversations about committees’ work programmes and responsibilities 

   Agreeing who does what 

13 / How collaboration might practically work 
   Action on mindset and culture 

   Securing good governance 

   Risk 

   Value for money 

   Wider policy issues, and the impact of council strategy on financial management

25 / Appendices: explaining the formal roles of audit,  
  scrutiny and the public 
   Understanding the role of the audit committee 

   Understanding the scrutiny role 

   Understanding the role of the public

Page 25



4 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Introduction

Page 26



5C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

This is a guide for councillors on audit committees and scrutiny committees on how member-level 
activity on audit, and councils’ scrutiny functions, can work more closely. It focuses in particular on 
how scrutiny can contribute productively to the core functions of Audit committees. 

Effective, member-level oversight of financial matters is a cornerstone of good governance. 

This paper should be read and acted on in conjunction with:

 “Audit committees: practical guidance for local authorities and police” (CIPFA, 2018);

 “Delivering good governance in local government: framework” (CIPFA, 2016)

 CIPFA Financial Management Code (CIPFA, 2019)

 “The Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption” (CIPFA, 2015);

 “The financial scrutiny practice guide” (CfGS, 2020);

 “The governance risk and resilience framework” (CfGS/Localis, 2021);

 “The Code of Audit Practice” (NAO, 2020);

 Any recent updates to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

This paper should also be read in the context of the statutory duties on financial held by the section 
151 officer, as well as the statutory duties on good governance held individually and collectively by 
senior officers generally.

Page 27



6 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Executive summary

Page 28



7C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

This paper suggests practical ways for councillors sitting on audit committees and scrutiny 
committees, and the officers supporting those roles, to share information and work together better. 
These people can work together to. 

 Clarify the core roles of both functions;

 Have regular conversations about committees’ work programmes, and responsibilities;

 Agree ways to ensure that issues can be passed between committees, avoiding duplication; 

 Engage members of the audit committee on scrutiny task groups, or in budget scrutiny;

 Carry out work to develop the Annual Governance Statement and the scrutiny Annual Report;

 Spread awareness of the audit function (and councillors’ roles in relation to audit) across the 
council’s wider membership. 

Councillors’ roles relating to audit and scrutiny are distinct. Scrutiny is concerned with the review 
of policy, its formulation and implementation. Audit operates to ensure that the governance and risk 
environment within the council is effective and that financial management is fit for purpose. 

Each requires its own focus and resources. CIPFA recommends against combining audit and scrutiny  
in a single committee. Such action risks conflicts of interest, spreading councillors and others too 
thin, and losing clarity over both audit and scrutiny’s important statutory functions. Both functions 
require distinct support and should be able to operate effectively and independently. But because the 
functions relate to similar areas, there will be matters of common interest where it makes sense to 
collaborate. 

These matters include:

 Action on mindset and culture. Culture here is about the attitudes, behaviours and values of those 
involvement in the management and oversight of financial management. Scrutiny can use its role to 
test and challenge the presence of this culture across the organisation as part of its wider role. 

 Securing good governance. Audit committees have a formal responsibility relating to the 
governance framework, including the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. Scrutiny’s 
inquiries can also serve to identify weakness and risk in this area, insight which can inform the 
development of the AGS. This may include the wider transparency of the council on financial 
matters;

 Risk. This is a critical part of the responsibility of member audit. Risk is an important factor in 
particular areas of audit committees’ activity (for example, on treasury management as we mention 
below). Risk also plays an important role in assessing the “materiality” of misstatements in the 
financial statements (which we also explain further below). For scrutiny, risk can provide an 
important framework for prioritising matters on the work programme – it can be used as a tool to 
understand where pressures and weakness lies on which scrutiny can contribute productivity. It is 
easy to see how scrutiny and Audit’s areas of interest might converge, given these roles;

 Value for money. All authorities have a responsibility to make arrangements to secure “best value”, 
and continuous improvement, under the Local Government Act 1999 – ensuring that scrutiny 
and audit work closely together on this critical issue is likely to be important. Audit and scrutiny 
have distinct and complementary roles here – Audit oversees the adequacy of arrangements to 

Page 29



8 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

secure VfM while scrutiny can delve into performance and outcomes. External auditors have a 
responsibility for assuring that authorities have arrangements in place to ensure value for money;

 Wider policy issues, and the impact of council strategy on financial management. This may include 
some of the following:

 • How the council plans for the future, and how its medium term financial plan and its corporate  
 plans align for the long term;

 • The way the council works with its partners (and exposure to risk in respect of those matters).  
 This may include the way that the council procures and outsources services, its approach to  
 borrowing and the capital strategy, its approach to commercial activity, and other local factors  
 which may influence financial affairs. 

 

Most of these roles link closely to the “core functions” of Audit as set out in CIPFA guidance. More 
detail on the statutory functions and contexts of both the Audit and scrutiny functions can be found 
in the appendix. 

Structural matters

 In some councils, the member audit and scrutiny functions are joined, often through an “Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee”. CfGS agrees with CIPFA’s recommendation that the functions of the Audit 
and scrutiny committees should not be combined in a single committee. Blurring the roles of these 
functions puts a council at significant risk of weak governance. 

 CIPFA and CfGS also recommend against the practice of audit committees taking on other 
responsibilities (for example, for the Audit committee to be termed an “Audit and Governance” 
committee). 

Similarly, many scrutiny committees have varied terms of reference. Some councils have multiple 
scrutiny committees, some only one. In councils with multiple scrutiny committees it is likely to 
make most sense that the scrutiny/audit committee liaison that this paper suggests occurs between 
the audit chair and the chair of any “parent” scrutiny committee, with that chair ensuring that an 
awareness of audit issues is built into the working patterns and plans of other scrutiny committees. 
Otherwise, individual conversations with multiple scrutiny chairs are likely to lead to confusion.

Page 30



9C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Ways to collaborate

Page 31



10 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Chairs and officers involved in both audit and scrutiny should meet and correspond regularly to talk 
about workplans and identify any potential duplication or gaps in coverage. This section sets out the 
kinds of tasks that these discussions should focus on – there is however no single correct approach. 

 
Clarifying the core roles of both functions. 

As a first step, this involves an awareness of statutory roles and responsibilities. More detail on formal 
roles and arrangements can be found in the appendix. 

The role of audit is set out in CIPFA guidance, which lays out some core functions for committees. 
These include: 

Officer support is important here. The council’s s151 officer and the head of audit and risk 
management, along with the council’s monitoring officer, will have a range of responsibilities. 

The role of scrutiny is more general. In legislation, scrutiny committees may look at anything which 
affects the area or the area’s inhabitants. Scrutiny committees can select a range of methods to 
do this – taking reports in committee, or carrying out research in “task and finish” groups. Scrutiny 
makes an impact by making recommendations to the council’s executive, or to other local bodies. 
Government guidance on scrutiny published in 2019 highlights the breadth of the function’s role, and 
suggests that each council will need to consider a more narrow focus for scrutiny activity which offers 
the opportunity for maximum impact. 

Given these overall functions and responsibilities there are a few areas of policy and practice where 
the work of audit committees and scrutiny committees could overlap. For example:

 Reviewing regular finance and performance reports;

 Reviewing council commercial activity, including oversight of procurement;

 General review of value for money arrangements . 

 
The publication of the external auditor’s narrative 
opinion on value for money is likely to provide 
an important anchor for discussion on the 
relationship between the Audit and scrutiny 
committees and their respective roles.  

These discussions will inform practical, day to day 
liaison about “what should go where” – which we 
go on to talk about in more detail below. 

External auditors have a core duty to 
publish:

 an opinion on the authority’s accounts, 
and 

 a conclusion on “value for money” 
arrangements. 

(More on the role of the external auditor 
can be found in the appendix)

 Assurance on good governance and  
decision making

 Improving value for money

 Improving public reporting and  
accountability

 Embedding ethical values and  
countering fraud

 Effective risk management

 Effective internal controls

 Effective audit and assurance

Page 32



11C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Regular conversations about committees’ work programmes and responsibilities

Good working relationships are a precondition for any meaningful collaboration between audit and 
scrutiny committees. 

 A formal protocol is not needed for this to 
work – nor is the exchange of reports or 
the mutual reporting of minutes to other 
committees. 

It is most likely that a brief monthly 
conversation between chairs will provide the 
best start – and will give a sense of what 
matters might need to be discussed in more 
detail. 

More detailed discussion might, for example, 
be needed around the time of the publication 
of the external auditor’s opinion and the 
preparation of the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

Less frequently, the council’s s151 officer, and 
Head of Internal Audit, might want to discuss 
the the scrutiny/Audit relationship and their 
mutual work with the authority’s statutory 
scrutiny officer.  

 
 
Agreeing who does what 

Discussions will have to focus on who is doing what, and where the audit and scrutiny committees are 
learning things through their work which might be useful to each other. This will include:

 Liaison over the scoping of certain scrutiny reviews. Scrutiny scopes will need to be developed with 
financial matters in mind;

 Liaison over recommendations which may arise from scrutiny reviews;

 Whether members of the audit committee might sit on certain scrutiny task groups, or be involved 
in the budget scrutiny process. This may help to deepen the awareness of the scrutiny function of 
financial issues.

 The audit committee inviting comment from a scrutiny committee on the external auditor’s findings 
on value for money;

 Scrutiny highlighting to the audit committee matters relating to financial management and 
oversight which might emerge as a result of scrutiny reviews;

 Discussion over the robustness of the council’s budget processes, particularly where scrutiny has 
an active role in scrutinising the development of the budget.

Things for audit and scrutiny chairs to discuss

 Matters of emerging concern (arising from 
regular financial, performance or risk 
reporting);

 Longer term work (budget development, 
the planning of the medium-term financial 
strategy);

 Corporate governance matters (the 
production of external auditors’ opinions, 
the production of the Annual Governance 
Statement)

 Agreement on how more in-depth work 
on these matters might be dealt with – 
whether and how audit committee and a 
scrutiny committee might work together in 
understanding and pursuing improvement on 
those issues – the next part sets out exactly 
what that agreement might look like.

Page 33



12 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

 Any particular, emerging concerns – especially where external auditors might raise points of 
concern or where public scrutiny of the council accounts may do the same. Here, scrutiny’s insight 
into broader performance issues may be useful.

These discussions can feed into further conversations – on what training and development councillors 
might require, and on the content of the council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

The Annual Governance Statement is a statutory requirement, the result of a review process 
usually led by the Monitoring officer and s151 officer. It should normally be laid before full 
Council. Audit has oversight over the development and agreement of the AGS. Scrutiny is 
likely to have insights into the health and capability of the governance framework which may 
inform this review process. These may include the effectiveness of the council’s own scrutiny 
arrangements, which the scrutiny function may choose to evaluate by way of its own Annual 
Report to Council

Page 34



13C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

How collaboration might 
practically work

Page 35



14 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

The previous section set out those areas where collaboration might be useful – 

this section goes  

into more detail, exploring those opportunities and setting out practically how 

such collaboration might work. 

 Action on mindset and culture. 

 Securing good governance.

 Risk. 

 Value for money. 

 Wider policy issues, and the impact of council strategy on financial 

management. 

Page 36



15C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Action on mindset and culture

Mindset and culture are important element of financial planning – short and long 

term. Councillors have a particular role to model the behaviours they expect to 

see from others and to ensure that the attitudes and values that underpin those 

behaviours are focused on supporting robust financial processes. 

Practical opportunities for joint working

The presence of a culture of financial probity, realistic approaches to risk 

(which we cover in more detail below), and a mindset of candour and openness 

on financial and budget matters all support the need for close audit/scrutiny 

working. 

Scrutiny work programming might be designed to specifically take into account 

financial matters, and the scoping of individual reviews themselves might involve 

discussion of financial matters as a matter of course. This serves two purposes 

– raising the profile of financial matters and ensuring that they are treated as 

“business as usual” in scrutiny’s work, and integrating an awareness of financial 

management into scrutiny reviews. 

Sometimes, scrutiny councillors might feel that technical issues around financial 

management need looking into. They might decide to pass those matters to 

the audit committee. Conversely, the audit committee may ask scrutiny to look 

more deeply into a given subject by reviewing its non-financial implications. 

All of this activity is designed to highlight the attitude that collaboration on 

financial matters is important – that while statutory responsibility for many 

issues lies with audit, an awareness of financial challenges and an obligation to 

act on them is something which is collectively owned, requiring a whole-council 

response. 

Some of this will inevitably involve consideration of attitudes towards risk, and 

risk appetite, which we discuss in more detail below. 

Page 37



16 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Action on mindset and culture: questions to ask and issues to explore

 What can the external auditor’s opinion tell us about the culture and 

behaviours present in the authority around financial management generally?

 How are cultures and behaviours exhibited in practice – for example, in how 

officers respond to requests by the public to inspect the accounts?

 How do officers in service departments respond to financial pressures?

 How do officers (and members) shift their priorities in consequence of 

financial pressures?

 Where priorities and circumstances do shift in-year, what approach do officers 

and members take towards things like virement, underspends and overspends, 

and what are the processes and systems which define how such matters are 

overseen?

 How is an awareness of the cultural components of good financial 

management built into the review supporting the Annual Governance 

Statement, and what measures are in place to  

address these matters strategically? (This may link to recent work carried out 

by CfGS and Localis – the “Governance risk and resilience framework” (2021), 

as well as the CIPFA Financial Management Code.  

Page 38



17C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Securing good governance

The work of the audit committee (and its connection to the work of external 

audit) should serve the public interest. In the context of local government, whilst 

it is often known what councils have spent (financial stewardship), it is often 

not clear what councils have got for it (value for money), nor whether it has 

contributed towards fairness in local communities (equity)1.

 

Practical opportunities for joint working

The audit committee is required to work on the preparation and reporting of the 

Annual Governance Statement (AGS). Scrutiny is likely to be able to feed insights 

on the strengths and weaknesses in the governance framework to the audit 

committee.

In practice, this means that scrutiny reviews may have picked up throughout 

the year on themes and issues relating to good governance, which should be 

formally fed into the AGS. This may be informed by the use of the CfGS/Localis 

“Governance risk and resilience framework” (2021). 

Securing the effectiveness of internal audit is another core function of the audit 

committee. The audit committee holds responsibility for oversight of this, but 

scrutiny can explore and consider the wider organisational culture relating to 

how money is managed and spent as part of its work.

Finally, the audit committee holds responsibility for oversight of the assurance 

framework. The framework is the mechanism by which the council’s leadership 

can satisfy themselves that policy decisions are being implemented, and that 

controls and safeguards exist and are operating effectively. Scrutiny itself 

forms a part of this framework. Assurance is also about councillors’ awareness 

of risk factors, and control issues, and how that awareness informs their 

responsibilities. Scrutiny’s role will need to be fully and accurately understood 

by the audit committee to ensure that the potential for the scrutiny function to 

add a range of perspectives here is recognised. 

1  Laurence Ferry, Audit and Inspection of Local Authorities in England: Five years after the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, HCLG Committee, 3 July 2019

Page 39



18 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Part of this assurance responsibility is the oversight of external auditors. This is 

something of which scrutiny will need to be aware, as backbench members may 

want to pick up on matters of concern raised in their reports, (subject to liaison 

with the audit committee itself2). This will be particularly pertinent if external 

auditors issue a qualified opinion, if they decide to issue a Report in the Public 

Interest, and/or where the council’s s151 officer issues a s114 notice. For these 

circumstances, there will need to be plans and provisions in place to determine 

how scrutiny and the audit committee will work together to best manage 

imminent threats to the authority’s financial resilience. 

Securing good governance: questions to ask and issues to explore

 How can we have assurance that everyone in the governance system – 

members of Audit, of scrutiny, of other bodies (including Cabinet) and senior 

officers understand how individual and collective roles on good governance 

are understood and acted upon?

 How does the council (including Audit and scrutiny) incorporate an awareness 

of broader area working into its governance arrangements? Audit may be quite 

focused on the council as an institution – how aware is it (and other parts of 

the system) of the broader partnership and commercial dynamic within which 

the council operates?

 How does an awareness of financial challenges, and of the need for good 

financial conduct, permeate the organisation? How are the organisation’s 

standards and values (and the standards and behaviours of members) tied to 

an understanding of the health of the control environment?

 Where a local person has sought to use their powers under the 2014 Act to 

inspect the accounts (and potentially to raise an objection) what has their 

experience been, what has that process revealed and are there any issues 

which the Audit and scrutiny committees will need to investigate in more 

detail?

 
2  Recommendations 4 and 12 of the Redmond Review

Page 40



19C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Risk

There will need to be a consideration of those risks that may have a significant 

impact beyond the year and into the medium to long-term. The audit and 

scrutiny committees can seek to understand what systems are in place to tackle 

and mitigate those risks. In the section below on wider policy issues we look at 

the other side of this issue – how audit and scrutiny can work together as part 

of this framework to take direct action on these risks themselves. 

Practical opportunities for joint working

Risk is central to effective scrutiny3. There are three components to audit 

committee risk management, which each have an intersection with scrutiny:

 Assurance on governance of risk. This is about oversight of the framework; 

for scrutiny, it will involve developing familiarity with where leadership and 

responsibility lies on risk;

 Reviewing the risk profile. Understanding where and how strategic risks are 

emerging and being managed is an important audit committee task, which 

may benefit from scrutiny’s assistance;

 Monitoring the effectiveness of risk management arrangements. It is likely 

that scrutiny can, through wider reviews of policy development, integrate 

an awareness of risk management into its work – ensuring that audit 

committee can be supported with a grounding in what is likely to constitute 

the most efficacious approach to understanding evaluating risk management 

arrangements.  

Risk: questions to ask and issues to explore

 To what extent is the authority’s understanding of the financial risks it faces 

informed by an understanding of a clear sense of the needs of local people 

and demand for critical services?

3   “The governance risk and resilience framework” (CfGS/Localis, 2021), https://www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk/ ; “Risk and resilience” (CfGS, 2016),  
 https://www.cfgs.org.uk/?publication=risk-and-resilience 

Page 41



20 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

 How does specific risk management overseen by Audit feed into the 

management of strategic risks on council services?

 To what extent is an understanding of financial risk integrated into a broader 

understanding of risks to the resilience of the wider governance framework?

 How are risk matters regularly discussed by a wider range of councillors than 

just those sitting on the Audit committee, and how is the Annual Governance 

Statement used to bring these issues to the attention of the member corps 

more generally?

 
 
 

Page 42



21C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Value for money

In audit terms, ‘value for money’ (VfM) is defined as a public body’s “economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources4. We have already noted 

the specific duties of external auditors in ensuring that an authority has steps 

in place to ensure value for money. This commentary can form the basis of 

productive audit/scrutiny committee collaboration. 

Practical opportunities for joint working

Audit committees hold a particular responsibility to assure value for money, 

and Best Value. Councils continue to hold a legal obligation under the Local 

Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to effect continuous improvements 

to their services; the “best value” duty. The external auditor will have a 

responsibility for issuing an opinion on broader “value for money” objectives and 

whether they have been met. As part of its substantive programme of reviews, 

scrutiny may be able to deliver evidence to support this activity. 

Scrutiny’s engagement in VfM matters is likely to come into play in the oversight 

of the budget5. This involves a focus on the value and outcomes of proposed 

budget decisions. 

A key role of the external auditor is to provide a narrative judgment on value 

for money at the authority. Importantly, this is not about value for money 

substantively, but about assurance that the council has the systems in place 

to assure value for money (the external auditor does not look at the outcome 

of that assurance process). Scrutiny can play a role in ensuring that the council 

does deliver services that are value for money through its review work. 

This is likely to be particularly important in councils which have adopted 

outcomes-based accountability (OBA), outcomes-based budgeting (OBB) and 

outcomes-based commissioning (OBC). These three linked sets of practices fix 

attention on outcome and impact, and demand that the needs of local people be 

well understood and used to inform priorities and budgets.

4 Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, s.20 
5  “The financial scrutiny practice guide” (CfGS, 2020)

Page 43



22 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

In this area in particular, scrutiny and audit committees will need to carefully 

consider their mutual roles. Audit committee’s core functions are all involved in 

overseeing the systems which support the budget development process (such as 

internal audit review and assessment against the Financial Management Code) – 

ensuring that the process and evidence used to support it are robust. Scrutiny’s 

role is arguably more political – engaging in the substance of decisions, weighing 

up priorities and impacts. This provides an opportunity to align the functions by 

ensuring that formal oversight of financial systems is carried out in the context 

of an awareness of the political dynamics within which they sit.  

Value for money: questions to ask and issues to explore

 How does the authority use the judgment of the external auditor on value 

for money to ensure that value for money is substantively delivered? What 

specific role(s) can scrutiny play to secure value for money?

 How does the judgment of the external auditor on value for money feed into 

wider discussion on service design?

 How does the council draw in intelligence and insight from the public, 

partners and other places to give it an accurate assessment of the value for 

money of its services?

 To what extent are performance management frameworks (and other 

management systems) designed around value for money?

Page 44



23C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Wider policy issues, and the impact of council strategy on  
financial management 

This includes an awareness of risks, opportunities and impacts arising from 

policy decisions more generally – long term corporate plans (and how they 

interact with the medium-term financial strategy), partnership working, 

procurement, commercial activity and connected matters. 

The emerging risks that councils are facing at the time of writing (June 2021) 

largely centre around commercial ventures. In time however this will change, and 

review of the council’s strategic risk register will provide a sense of how these 

changes are happening, and where the greatest policy-related risks to financial 

management lie. 

Practical opportunities for joint working

Governance and oversight of an increasingly complicated environment within 

which public services are designed and delivered places particular stresses on 

finances. Our ability to understand these pressures boil down to our ability to 

predict how they will impact on finances in the short and long term. The nature 

of risk – particularly in light of the pandemic – can shift exceptionally quickly, 

making long term planning a challenge. Together, audit and scrutiny committees 

can explore the practical implications of this uncertainty and support councils to 

understand how they can enhance their resilience to future shocks. 

These may include:

 the creation of new vehicles for service delivery, 

 the development of complex partnerships which have the potential to make 

accountability less clear, and 

 councils embarking on commercial or other activity which – as has been seen 

in 2020/21 – can expose them to unexpected financial challenges. 

These policy pressures, and others, link to what we said in the sections  

above on risk. 

Page 45



24 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

At a member level, the audit committee holds responsibility for oversight and 

assurance of the governance framework, within which scrutiny should expect to 

work. The audit committee will need to ensure that the governance framework, 

as it evolves and becomes more complex, with more stakeholders, is designed 

not only to permit involvement of the scrutiny function, but to ensure that it 

is meaningfully integrated in a way that adds value. There is the potential here 

(particularly relating to councils contracting with other bodies) for tension 

around commercial confidentiality, with governance obligations under the 

Companies Act, and with the general perception that governance for commercial 

activity needs to be streamlined. This makes audit committee oversight and 

careful design of an ongoing member role through scrutiny especially important. 

Wider policy issues: questions to ask and issues to explore

 Where do responsibilities lie for overseeing the risk factors around long term 

planning?

 How might the need for confidentiality in respect of the way that the 

council engages with certain partners impact on a) the ability of councillors 

to understand risks relating to commercial operations and b) the financial 

exposure of the authority to risks around failure?

 What is the intersection between governance of the council and governance of 

(for example) commercial or outsourced matters?

 What are the primary objectives of commercial and partnership activity? Are 

these different from the objectives of the authority, and the objectives of the 

other partner or partners? How have things changed over time, and how can 

divergence be understood and taken account of?

Page 46



25C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Appendices: explaining the 
formal roles of audit, scrutiny 
and the public

Page 47



26 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

Understanding the role of the audit committee

This section is designed to provide a straightforward explanation of audit committees for members of 
scrutiny committees. It is intended as an introduction and is not comprehensive. Councillors wishing 
to know more should read “Audit committees: practical guidance for local authorities and police” 
(CIPFA, 2018) and speak to their council’s section 151 officer. More detailed technical information on 
external audit more generally can be found in the 2020 Statutory Code of Audit Practice. 

This information sets out the position as it applied in June 2021. At the time of writing plans for 
change were being considered by Government following the Redmond Review; when these changes 
have been brought into force we will make amendments to this publication, and readers should 
ensure that they refer to the most relevant and up-to-date information. 

The core of the local government audit regime can be found in the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act, which replaced the previous arrangements by which audit was overseen by a national body, the 
Audit Commission. Local authorities are also required to comply with accounting practices set out 
in the Local Government Act 2003, and the Capital Finance and Accounting Regulations 2003, which 
underpin the statutory CIPFA Accounting Code of Practice. 

A useful summary of the regime (including a diagram illustrating the relationships between key actors) 
can be found in sections 2 and 3 of the Redmond Review (whose work and findings are referenced 
elsewhere in this document). 

Under the Act, a number of entities have responsibility for oversight of the regime. Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Ltd acts as an “appointing body” for local authority external auditors – but they do not 
have a role in securing the health of the audit system overall, a function that used to be performed by 
the AC. PSAA maintains arrangements to ensure the contractual compliance of external auditors; the 
Financial Reporting Council and ICAEW oversee audit quality. . 

 
The role of external auditors

The auditor’s statutory responsibilities are listed at Schedule 1 of the statutory Code of Audit Practice. 

External auditors have a core duty to publish:

 an opinion on the authority’s accounts, and 

 a conclusion on “value for money” arrangements (something which intersects with an authority’s 
duty to make arrangements to deliver “Best Value”, under the Local Government Act 1999). 

The financial audit opinion covers the financial statements, the Housing Revenue Account and the 
Collection Fund Account. The work carried out by external auditors is not an exhaustive review of the 
accounts of the authority, line by line. External auditors will instead consider groups of transactions 
with similar characteristics and evaluate the risk of “material misstatement” for each. A misstatement 
will be “material” if it could influence the wider decisions taken by users on the basis of the financial 
statements. An understanding of risk, and an understanding of how the authority uses financial 
statements and information, is therefore an important part of the external auditor’s role. 

The value for money opinion is not an evaluation of the substantive value for money of the authority 
and its services. An external auditor’s job – further to the Statutory Code of Audit Practice is to 
determine instead whether arrangements are in place to ensure that value for money is delivered. In 
doing so the external auditor must comment on:

Page 48



27C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

 Financial sustainability: how the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to 
deliver its services;

 Governance: how the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its 
risks;

 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the body uses informed about its costs and 
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services. 

Chapter 3 of the NAO’s Code of Audit Practice provides a useful summary of the auditor’s obligations. 

The external auditor must also issue an annual report, bringing together all of their work in the previous 
year. This can provide a useful basis for scrutiny and audit committees to understand where issues 
and concerns need to be looked at further. The annual report must be published no later than 30 
September. The Redmond Review recommends that the annual report should be presented to full 
Council. 

On occasion an external auditor may use its power to publish a “report in the public interest” (RIPI), 
to highlight particular concerns which need urgent attention. The Redmond Review expressed some 
concern that RIPIs were not issued by external auditors more regularly given the risk and pressures 
under which local authorities are under – this is perhaps unsurprising as the concept of “public 
interest” is undefined in the legislation. 

Powers also exist to issue statutory recommendations to an authority. The external auditor also has 
important duties – in particular to consider whistleblowing disclosures and to respond to objections 
raised by electors or other relevant persons. 

Once the audit is complete the external auditor is required to produce a completion certificate. 

 
Audit systems within the council: in general

Within the council, audit committees, internal audit and scrutiny are all key internal checks and 
balances. It is important to emphasise the difference between Audit committees and the Internal Audit 
functions, as well as the role of the external auditors.

 
More detail on audit committees

Audit committees are a key component of a council’s governance framework, set up to support good 
governance and strong public financial management. Audit committees play an essential role in 
providing a high-level focus on probity, assurance and reporting, and can be delegated some additional 
governance responsibilities by the council. Audit is concerned with the robustness of the council’s 
arrangements to implement its policies and to manage its resources but it has no wider role in 
engaging with policy.

An Audit committee will be composed principally of councillors (but not members of the 
administration). The Redmond Review, looking into the composition of committees and the skills of 
their members, found that size varies significantly, and that the skills of Audit members (and the 
support available to them, through training and so on) also varies. 

As a matter of good practice, a way of bringing expertise into the work of Audit is through the 
appointment of independent lay members. An independent member may act as the Chair of the 
committee. Again, the extent to which authorities have made such appointments, and the value that 
such independent people provide, was found by Redmond to vary significantly (see section 5.1.6 et seq). 

Page 49



28 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

“The purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance independent 
assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control environment and 
the integrity of the financial reporting and governance processes. By overseeing both internal and 
external audit it makes an important contribution to ensuring that effective assurance arrangements 
are in place”. 

CIPFA Position Statement: Audit Committees (CIPFA, 2018), para 2 

Internal audit

The role of internal audit is to provide independent assurance by focusing on major areas of risk 
for the council, both strategic and financial, in order to evaluate the effectiveness of the council’s 
risk management and governance processes. As well as providing assurance, an internal auditor’s 
knowledge of the management of risk enables them to act as a consultant in providing support for 
improvement in the council’s procedures.

The scope of internal audit includes all of the council’s operations, resources, services and 
responsibilities. Where agreements allow, this includes all contractors and other bodies commissioned 
to deliver services on behalf of the council.

The Head of internal audit is required to provide an annual opinion on the governance, risk, 
management and internal audit controls within the council. This significantly contributes to the 
council’s statutory Annual Governance Statement (AGS). Internal audit will also summarise their work 
in regular, usually quarterly, reports to the Audit committee.

If you want to find out more about the purpose, authority and responsibility of internal audit, it can 
be found in your council’s ‘Internal Audit Charter’. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 provide 
further information. 

 
Understanding the scrutiny role

This section is for audit members, and for officers involved in internal and external audit, to explain 
the scrutiny function. Many (but not all) councils will have a statutory scrutiny officer – designated 
further to the Local Government Act 2000. This officer will be in a position to provide assistance on 
scrutiny’s duties, and ongoing work. 

All councils operating executive arrangements (councils with a Leader and Cabinet, and councils 
with an directly elected Mayor) are required to have a scrutiny committee. Councils operating the 
committee system may have a scrutiny committee but do not have to. For councils without a scrutiny 
committee, some of the functions described below will happen elsewhere – in service committees, at 
full Council, at a General Purposes Committee or, potentially, at a Policy and Resources Committee. 

There is significantly less guidance and direction on the role of scrutiny than there is on the role 
of audit. Furthermore, members of audit are likely to have had experience of scrutiny – a seat on a 
scrutiny is commonly the first appointment that new councillors will enjoy once elected. Hence, this 
section is rather shorter than the one previous. 

The council’s scrutiny function has a responsibility for investigating any issue affecting the area, or the 
area’s inhabitants. This broad power is conferred by the Local Government Act 2000. 

Scrutiny may require that council officers and Cabinet members attend meetings to answer questions; 

Page 50



29C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r

they may require the provision of information by the council (scrutiny councillors have substantial 
rights over information held by the authority) and they may require a response by the executive on 
recommendations that they make. 

Scrutiny committees may make certain requests of other organisations too. In particular, local 
NHS bodies and community safety partnership are subject to a form of oversight from the scrutiny 
function. 

Scrutiny committees have substantial freedom to deliver their responsibilities, and this is reflected in 
a very wide range of functional models for scrutiny overall. Scrutiny’s role will also differ substantially 
from authority to authority. This will reflect local democratic need.

It is common for scrutiny to carry out its work in two ways – in committee, and through “task 
and finish” groups, or other forms of working groups. The latter are informal groups of councillors, 
politically proportionate, commissioned by a parent committee, to investigate an issue and return with 
a report and recommendations. 

The extent to which scrutiny is able to carry out its role will depend on the resources made  
available to it. 

In guidance (both statutory, and informally) scrutiny is recommended to establish a clear role for 
itself, which complements the role of other member-level bodies. Audit is likely to need to be aware 
of this role as part of work supporting the Annual Governance Statement, and this may provide the 
first opportunity to promote closer working between the two functions. 

 
Understanding the role of the public

The public are a crucial stakeholder in assuring the financial health of local authorities. The public, in 
particular, have specific powers in the 2014 Act to access accounts, and there are duties around the 
transparency of financial reporting. 

The public may inspect the council’s financial statements and the underlying accounting records. 
They have a 30-day period in which to do so, which must include the first ten days of June. Local 
authorities are also, under separate arrangements, required to publish details of all expenditure  
over £500. 

External auditors, as we have already noted, have a duty to respond to objections to the accounts 
made by local people, which may relate to accounts accessed in this way. 

“Opening up the books” is a crucial mechanism to provide for local accountability. It is an expectation 
that the way that public money is spent should be fully open to investigation by local people. The 
Audit committee, internal audit and external auditors all have a role in ensuring that this happens, 
with ultimate responsibility lying with the s151 officer. 

In some areas, objectors have reported poor experiences of the process – in terms of how external 
auditors respond to objections, the quality of the response and the level of detail provided. The 
method that the public might use to complain about there experiences here is, in some cases, 
unclear6. 

Scrutiny functions, meanwhile, may have their own arrangements in place for ensuring public 
feedback and input. 

6 Research for Action, “Democracy denied: audit and accountability failure in local government” (2021), accessible at  
 https://researchforaction.uk/democracy-denied-audit-and-accountability-failure-in-local-government 

Page 51



30 C f G S   /   A u d i t  c o m m i t t e e s  a n d  s c r u t i n y  c o m m i t t e e s :  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r
Centre for Governance and Scrutiny Limited is a registered charity: 1136243 and a Limited Company registered in England and Wales: 5133443

77 Mansell Street  London  E1 8AN 

telephone 020 7543 5627  email info@cfgs.org.uk  twitter @CfGScrutiny 

www.cfgs.org.uk Page 52



Allerdale Borough Council – Executive Reports and Key Decisions 
 
1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 
 

Decision Date decision to be 
made and decision 
maker 

Open/Exempt Portfolio Holder Officer contact details 

Application to 
Levelling Up Fund 
 
Key Decision 
 
The Levelling Up Fund 
is a £4.8 billion 
infrastructure fund 
announced at the 
Spending Review. The 
fund is aimed at 
supporting town centre 
and high street 
regeneration, local 
transport projects, and 
cultural and heritage 
assets. A prospectus for 
the Fund was published 
at the time of the budget 
on 3 March 2021. 
 
Under the fund criteria 
this Council is able to 
submit one bid. This can 
be for up to £20 million 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking 
 
4 June 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 11



and can include up to 
three projects provided 
they form part of a single 
consistent proposal. The 
County Council is 
eligible to submit one 
transport bid within 
Cumbria. Local 
authorities can only 
have one successful bid 
over the lifecycle of the 
fund. 

Approval of the 
Memorandum of 
Understand on 
Maryport Future High 
Streets Programme 
 
Key Decision 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking 
 
22 June 2021 

Open 
 
 

 Graeme Wilson, 
Programme Director for 
Maryport Regeneration 
 
graeme.wilson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Quarter 4 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 4 
2020/21. 
 
 

Executive 
 
23 June 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

P
age 54



Appointments to 
Outside Bodies 2021-
22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To appoint Council 
representatives to 
Outside Bodies that are 
a function of the 
Executive. 

Executive 
 
23 June 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Allerdale Investment 
Partnership - 
Consideration of 
Future Sites 
 
Key Decision 

Chief Executive, Chief 
Officer (Assets) and 
S151 Officer 
 
June 2021 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Brendan Carlin, 
Assistant Chief 
Executive (Innovation 
and Commercial) 
 
brendan.carlin@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Capital Outturn 
2020/21 
 
Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the 
 
• capital outturn position 
for 2020/21 and to 
approve the carry-
forward of capital 
resources to 2021/22. 

Executive 
 
21 July 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Colin 
Sharpe) 

Catherine Nicholson, 
Chief Officer (Assets) 
and S151 Officer 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 55



Revenue Outturn 
2020/21 
 
Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the 
• revenue outturn for 
2020/21 and make 
recommendations on 
budget carry forwards 
and transfers to and 
from reserves. 

Executive 
 
21 July 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Colin 
Sharpe) 

Gill Brocklebank, Allison 
Hodgson, Finance 
Support Assistant, 
Andrea Martin, Finance 
Support Assistant 
 
gill.brocklebank@allerda
le.gov.uk, 
allison.hodgson@allerda
le.gov.uk, 
andrea.martin@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Council Adoption of 
Cumbria Recovery 
Strategy 
 
Key Decision 
 
Allerdale Borough 
Council to adopt the 
Cumbria Rural Strategy 
and agree to use the 
resources required to 
plan an active role in the 
Cumbria wide recovery 
strategy and action plan. 

Executive 
 
21 July 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Andrew Seekings, Chief 
Executive 
 
andrew.seekings@allerd
ale.gov.uk 

Appointment of 
Strategic Delivery 
Partner 
 

Executive 
 
21 July 2021 

Part exempt 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 

Brendan Carlin, 
Assistant Chief 
Executive (Innovation 
and Commercial) 

P
age 56



Key Decision Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

 
brendan.carlin@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder 
updates (non-key) 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
28 July 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Report from 
Constitution Working 
Group - Review of 
Council Governance 
Arrangements and 
Structure 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
28 July 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Pay Policy Statement 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
28 July 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Kathryn Higgins, HR 
Advisor 
 
kathryn.higgins@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Quarter 1 Performance 
Report 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy 

Executive 
 
8 September 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald), Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Economic Growth, 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

P
age 57



Delivery plan 2021/22 at 
the end of Quarter 1 
2021/22. 

Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Portfolio Holder 
updates (non-key) 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
22 September 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Quarter 2 Performance 
Report 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy 
Delivery plan 2021/22 at 
the end of Quarter 2 
2021/22. 

Executive 
 
24 November 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald), Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder 
updates (non-key) 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
8 December 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder 
updates (non-key) 
 

Council 
 
26 January 2022 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 

P
age 58



Non-Key Decision Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Members Allowances 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
26 January 2022 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Quarter 3 Performance 
Report 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy 
Delivery plan 2021/22 at 
the end of Quarter 3 
2021/22. 

Executive 
 
23 March 2022 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald), Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Meetings of the Council, Executive and Scrutiny Committees are open to the public (except when exempt (confidential) items are 
being considered).  It is advisable to check the agenda before attending a meeting, as decision dates may be subject to change.   
Agendas and supporting documents for meetings of the Executive can be found on the Council’s website www.allerdale.gov.uk or 
at Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ 
Further information is available by calling 01900 702502 
 
Any representations as to why a meeting should be open to the public should be made in writing to Democratic Services at the 
above address. 
 
A list of the Executive members can be found at http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11

P
age 59

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/
http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11


T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 60


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 The Local Focus Hub
	8 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report
	9 Third report of the Response to the Pandemic Task and Finish Group
	10 Centre for Governance and Scrutiny guidance on the relationship between Scrutiny and Audit
	11 Forward Plan

